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BOARD’S REPORT

Dear Members,

Your directors have the pleasure of presenting their Eighth report on the business and
operations of Confirm Ticket Online Solutions Private Limited (the “Company/ Confirmtkt”)
together with the audited financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

I. Financial Statements and Results

1. Financial Results

The financial performances of your Company's operations are summarized below:

(% in Millions)
. As of March | As of March
e 31,2023 31, 2022

Income
Revenue from operations 1770.92 1282.05
Other Income 992 3.72
Total income (1) 1780.84 1285.77
Expenses
Employee benefit expense 95.10 74.91
Finance cost 0.05 0.74
Depreciation and amortization expense 0.13 0.11
Other expenses 1388.71 1016.68
Total expense (ll) 1483.99 1092.44
Profit / (loss) before tax (1) - (II) 296.85 193.33
Tax expenses
Current tax (75.40) (55.40)
Deferred tax 0.10 | 4.57
Profit after tax 221.35 142.50
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and
loss in subsequent periods
Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans (0.31) (0.78)
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to 0.08 020
profit and loss
Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year, net 221.12 141.92
of taxes
Earnings per equity share (Nominal value per share - 10)
Basic o 1636.05 1053.23 |
Diluted : 1621.20 1035.85
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2. Result of Operation

e Total income during the year 2022-23 increased to ¥1780.84 million as against Z
1,285.77 million during the year 2021-22, a growth of 38.50%.

e Profit before tax was ¥296.86 million during the year 2022-23 as compared to a
profit of 193.33 million during 2021-22, a growth of 53.55%.

e Profit after tax was ¥221.36 million during the year 2022-23 as compared to a profit
of ¥142.50 million during 2021-22, a growth of 55.34%.

e Basic earnings per share (Nominal value per share ¥10) was ¥1636.05 for the year
2022-23 as compared to a profit of ¥1053.23 for the year 2021-22, a growth of
55.34%.

e Diluted eamnings per share (Nominal value per share Z10) was 21621.20 for the

year 2022-23 as compared to a profit of 21035.85 per share for the year 2021-22,
a growth of 56.51%.

3. Appropriation and Reserves
Dividend
With a view to re-investing the profits of the business, the board of directors of your
Company (the “Board”) does not recommend any dividend on equity shares of the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2023.

Reserves

Your directors have not proposed to transfer any amount to reserves for the financial
year 2022-23.

4. Holding, Subsidiaries, Joint ventures and Associates of the Company
Holding Company:
Le Travenues Technology Limited continues to be the Holding Company pursuant to
Section 2(87) of the Companies Act, 2013 and there was no change in this position
during the Financial Year 2022-23.

During the Financial Year 2022-23, Holding Company increased its stake from 83.68%
to 90.08%.

During the year under review, your Company did not have any Subsidiary or Associate
or Joint Ventures company.

5. Revision of Financial Statement
There was no revision of the financial statements for the year under review.
6. Changes in the capital structure

During the year under review, there was no change in the authorized share capital,
subscribed and paid-up capital of the Company except the following:
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10.

Allotment of Shares upon exercise of options granted under the employee’s stock
option schemes.

Your Company is having two employees stock option schemes in force namely Confirm
Ticket Online Solutions Private Limited Scheme 2015 (‘ESOP 2015") and Confirm
Ticket Online Solutions Private Limited Scheme 2016 (“ESOP 2016") (hereinafter
collectively referred to in this report as “Prevailing ESOP") and your directors have
allotted the following equity shares during the year under review on the following dates
as set out below, consequent upon exercise of vested options granted under the
prevailing employees stock option schemes of the Company:

(i) Allotment on June 22, 2022

e 290 equity shares of 10 each with an issue price of ¥10 per shares
under ESOP 2015.

e 778 equity shares of ¥10 each with an issue price of ¥10 per shares
under ESOP 2016.

Public Deposits

During the financial year under review, your Company has not accepted or renewed any
deposit falling within the purview of the provisions of Sections 73 and 74 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act") read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits)
Rules, 2014. Accordingly, the requirement for furnishing details of deposits which are
not in compliance with Chapter V of the Act is not applicable.

Amendment / Alteration of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of
Association of the Company

During the year under review, there are no Amendments / Alterations in the
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of the Company.

Disclosures under Section 134(3)(l) of the Companies Act, 2013

Except as disclosed below and elsewhere in this report, no material changes and
commitments which could affect the Company's financial position have occurred
between the end of the financial year of the Company and the date of this report.

Subsequent to the year ended March 31, 2023, the Board of Directors of the Company
at their meeting held on April 24, 2023, have considered and approved the Scheme of
Amalgamation of Confirm Ticket Online Solutions Private Limited, (“Transferor
Company”) with Le Travenues Technology Limited, Holding Company (‘Transferee
Company”). Further, the Company has received approvals from the Equity
shareholders, Secured Creditors, and unsecured creditors. Post receiving these
approvals the Company filed the application with the Hon'ble NCLT for the approval of
the Scheme.

Disclosure of internal financial controls

The internal financial controls with reference to financial statements as designed and
implemented by the Company are adequate. As per the report issued by the statutory
auditors with respect to the financial statements on Internal Financial Controls of the
Company under Clause (i) of Sub-Section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013,
the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with

Page | 4



1.

12

13.

14.

15.

16.

reference to financial statements and such intemnal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the
internal control over financial reporting crteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the
ICAL

Particulars of contracts or arrangements made with related parties

Particulars of Contacts or Arrangement with related parties referred to in Section 188(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013, in the prescribed Form AOC - 2, have been furnished in
Annexure - 1 which forms part of this report.

Particulars of loans, guarantees and investments

Particulars of loans, guarantees, and investments covered under Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers)
Rules, 2014 as of March 31, 2023, are set out in the financial statements forming part of
this report.

Disclosure under Section 43(a)(ii) of the Companies Act, 2013

During the financial year under review, the Company has not issued any shares with
differential voting rights and hence no information as per provisions of Section 43(a)(ii)
of the Companies Act, 2013 read with applicable rules is furnished.

Disclosure under Section 54(1)(d) of the Companies Act, 2013

During the financial year under review, the Company has not issued any sweat shares
and hence no information as per the provisions of Section 54(1)(d) of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with applicable rules is furnished.

Disclosure under Section 62(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013

The Prevailing ESOS are in compliance with the applicable acts. Except as disclosed in
Annexure - 2, there are no material changes in the Prevailing ESOS during the year
under review.

Please refer to Annexure - 2 for details relating to Prevailing ESOS in compliance with
the provisions of Section 62(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Clause (9) of
Rule 12 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014,

Disclosure under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013

Your Company being an private company (subsidiary of public company), the disclosure
requirements under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

Operational performance

We are a technology company focused on empowering Indian travelers to plan, book
and manage their trips across rail, and buses. We assist travelers in making smarter
travel decisions by leveraging artificial infelligence, machine learning and data science-
led innovations on our OTA platforms, comprising our websites and mobile applications.
Our vision is to become the most customer-centric travel company, by offering the best
customer experience to our users. Our focus on travel utility and customer experience
for travelers in the ‘next billion users’ segment is driven by technology, cost-efficiency
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and our culture of innovation. Our OTA platforms allow travelers to book train tickets
while providing travel utility tools and services including train PNR status and
confirmation predictions, train seat availability alerts, train running status updates and
delay predictions.

We endeavors that our OTA platforms are able to build significant user adoption and
engagement by offering convenience, utility and value-added customer-centric solutions
for travel-related issues. Our Registered Users increased by 44.6% between Fiscal
2022 and Fiscal 2023 and our Repeat Transaction Rate was 87.4% in Fiscal 2023.
Further, the yearly downloads for our mobile apps on the Google Play Store and iOS
app stores stood at 28.4 million in Fiscal 2023, respectively.

On train utility and ticketing across holding company and Confirmtkt combined, this year
we continue to remain the most used and largest train OTA in India, with a dominant
and rising share of train B2C OTA bookings, where we work in partnership with IRCTC.
Holding Company has more recently cross-integrated flights, buses, and trains across
ixigo, Confirmtkt & Abhibus, allowing for more effective cross-selling of services across
the three brands.

We built and launched our free cancellation feature to enable our customers to receive
100% refund if they decide to cancel their trips for any reason.

During the period under review, the Company collaborated with Bahubali fame, Super
Star, Mr. Rana Daggubati and appointed him as a brand ambassador. The response
from the public has been nothing short of phenomenal, and we have witnessed a
remarkable surge in B2C sales as a direct result of this partnership.

We have successfully secured an exclusivity partnership with Phonepe, wherein
Phonepe have agreed to display Confirmtkt as their sole partner for train ticket bookings
and our partnership with Phonepe revolutionizes the way customers book train tickets.
This partnership not only reaffirms our position as a trusted and reliable platform for train
ticket bookings but also highlights the strength of our brand in the market. Our tie-up
with Google for the “Where in my Train” app gives new travel experiences to
passengers.

During the financial year 2022-23, India did not experience a significant increase in
COVID-19 cases. Although the effects of COVID-19 have broadly faded, the risk of
sporadic surge in cases remains and therefore, our safety practices have evolved to
tackle future risks. The Company continues to focus on employee safety and has put in
place measures to detect and limit the spread of COVID-19 cases at location.

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from COVID-18 on
the carrying amount of the receivables, investments, goodwill etc. While making the
assessment, the Company has taken cognizance of internal and external information up
to the date of approval of these Financial Statements.

Management believes that it has taken into account all the possible impacts of known
events arising from the COVID-19 pandemic in the preparation of the Financial
Statements. However, the impact assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process
given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration. The Company will
continue to monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

For a further detailed analysis of the operational performance of your Company, please
refer to the financial statements of the Company forming a part of the Annual Report.
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1.

Disclosure related to Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Directors

During the year under review, the following change took place on the board of
directors of the Company.

At the Seventh Annual General Meeting of the Company held on June 02, 2022, the
members approved the re-appointment of Mr. Sripad Vaidya, on the Board, who was
liable to retire by rotation and offered himself for re-appointment.

None of the directors of the Company are disqualified as per the provisions of Section
164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Declaration by Independent Director

Your Board has received declarations from the Independent Director confirming that
they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under Section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013. During the year under review, there has been no change in the
circumstances affecting their status as Independent Directors of your Company.

Key Managerial Personnel

During the year under review, no Key Managerial Personnel has been appointed.

IV. Disclosures related to Board, Committees and Policies

1.

Board Meetings

During the financial year under review, the board of directors met 5 times in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
thereunder on the following dates with a necessary quorum being present at all the
meetings.

a) May 04, 2022,

b) June 22, 2022;

c) June 29, 2022;

d) October 25, 2022;
e) February 15, 2023.

Following are the number of Board meetings attended by each director:

S. No. Name of the Director Number of meetings
attended
L Aloke Bajpai 05
2. Rajnish Kumar 05
3, Kotha Dinesh Kumar 05
4. Sripad Vaidya 05
o Shuba Rao Mayya 05
(Independent Director)
6. Puneet Aggarwal 05
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2. Directors’ Responsibility Statement

According to Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of
the Company confirms that:

iii.

<<

in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards
had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures, if any;

the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the
Company for that period;

the directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

the directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and
the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.

3. Committees of the Board

The company being deemed a public Company not covered within the threshold limits
criteria of the constitution of the committee so the provisions of Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 6 and 7 of the Companies (Meetings of the
Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013 does not apply to the Company.

(A)

(8)

(C)

Policies

Vigil Mechanism Policy for the Directors and Employees

For the year under review, your Company was not covered within the threshold
limits set out under Rule 7 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers)
Rules, 2014 read with Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Policy on Directors’ Appointment and Remuneration

For the year under review, your Company was not covered under Sub Section
(1) of Section 178. Hence the provisions of Section 134(3)(e) of the Companies
Act, 2013 were not applicable to the Company.

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy

In terms of the provisions of Section 135 of the Act, read with Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, (as amended) in
compliance with the exemption given under section 135 of the Act, the Company
has not formed Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR") Committee and the
function of CSR Committee is discharged by the Board.

The Company has adopted a CSR Policy, which is available on the website of
the Company at https://www.confirmtkt.com/csr-policy. Annual Report on CSR
activities, in the prescribed format, for FY 2022-23 as required under Sections
134 and 135 of the Act read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social
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Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Rule 9 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, is annexed as Annexure-3 to this report.

(D) Risk Management Policy

Your Company has put in place a Risk Management Policy based on the guiding
principles of identifying, assessing and mitigating risks. It is an integral part of

decision-making for your Company

and is dynamic in nature, undergoing

continuous improvement. The Risk Management process involves setting
objectives, identifying key risks on an ongoing basis, developing a mitigation

action plan and monitoring.

V. Auditors and Reports

1.

Statutory Auditors

S. R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants; (ICAl Firm Registration No.
101049W/E300004) was appointed as statutory auditors of your Company at Sixth
Annual General Meeting held on September 17, 2021, for a term of five years from the
conclusion of Sixth Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the Eleventh Annual
General Meeting of the Company in accordance with the provisions of Section 139 of
the Act. Pursuant to the amendment to Section 139 of the Act.

Statutory Auditors’ Report

The audit report issued by the statutory auditor for financial year ended 31* March
2023, is self-explanatory and doesn't require any explanation or comment from the
Board under section 134(3)(f) of the Companies Act, 2013 except on the following:

Relevant Extract - Auditors’ Report

Management Response

Annexure 1, Para (vii), Clause (a)

Undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, employees’  state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service
tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value
added tax, cess and other statutory dues
have generally been regularly deposiled
with the appropriate authorities though
there has been a delay in a few cases for
Goods and service tax. According to the
information and explanations given to us
and based on audit procedures performed
by us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of these statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period
of more than six months from the date

they became payable.

In respect of slight delays in payment of
statutory dues, the Company have
strengthened the processes to ensure
timely payments of all statutory dues. The
delay in payment of goods and services
tax was primarily due to nonpayment TCS
liability on Non Tejas trains for
Convenience, Catering & Insurance
charges. The Company in August 2022,
calculated the TCS liability for Q1 on non
tejas trains and discharged the same
along with interest.
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Other Disclosures
Annual Return

In compliance with the provisions of Section 92(3) and Section 134(3)(a) of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, a copy of the Company’s
Annual Return as of March 31, 2023, is available on the Investor Relations Section of
the confirmtkt website at https://www.confirmtkt.com/.

Prevention and prohibition of sexual harassment of women at the workplace

At Confirm Ticket Online Solutions Private Limited, we are committed to providing a
healthy work environment that is free of discrimination and unlawful harassment and
that enables employees to work without fear of prejudice, gender bias and sexual
harassment. In keeping with this commitment, your Company expressly and strictly
prohibits any form of employee harassment based on race, colour, religion, sex,
national origin, age, disability, or status in any group protected by state or local law.
The Company has always endeavoured for providing a better and safe environment
free of sexual harassment at all its workplaces.

Your Company had complied with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women
at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (“Act”) and Rules
made thereunder, relating to the constitution of the Internal Complaints Committee and
had continued conducting workshops and awareness programs for sensitizing the
employees with the provisions of the Act during the year under review.

For the year ended March 31, 2023, no cases of sexual harassment were reported to
the Internal Complaints Committee constituted by the Company.

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings
and Outgo

The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 in
respect of conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings
and outgo etc. are set out in Annexure — 4 which forms part of this report.

Non-applicability of maintenance of cost records
The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under

Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the rules made thereunder with
respect to the business carried on by the Company.

Reporting of Fraud

The Auditors of your Company have not reported any instances of fraud committed in
your Company by its officers or employees as specified under Sub-Section (12) of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Significant and material orders passed by the regulators, courts, or tribunals
There are no significant or material orders passed by the regulators, courts or tribunals

which would impact the going concemn status of the Company and its operations in
future. .
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VL

Compliance with Secretarial Standards on Board and General Meetings

During the year under review, your Company has complied with the applicable
provisions of Secretarial Standard - 1 and Secretarial Standard - 2 issued by the
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

Change in the nature of business carried on by the Company

During the year under review, there has been no change in the nature of business
carried on by the Company.

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

During the year under review, no application has been made and no proceeding is
pending against the Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

One-time settiement with any bank or financial institution

During the year under review, there was no instance of any one-time settlement with
any bank or financial institution.

Acknowledgement and Appreciation

Your directors take this opportunity to thank the customers, employees, investors,
vendors, banks, business associates, and regulatory authorities including the various
offices of the Central and State Govermnments, the Reserve Bank of India, and the
Registrar of Companies for the support, valuable assistance and co-operation
continuously extended to the Company. Your directors gratefully acknowledge the trust
and confidence and look forward to their continued support in the future.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Confirm Ticket Online Solutions Private Limited

.2&"

Kotha Dinesh Kumar Sripad Vaidya
(Director & CEO) (Director & COO)
DIN: 07092682 DIN: 07092692
Date: July 13, 2023 Date: July 13, 2023
Place: Bangalore Place: Bangalore
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Annexure-1

Details relating to the employees' stock option schemes of the Company in
compliance with the provisions of Section 62(1)(b) of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with Clause (9) of Rule 12 of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules,
2014,

Details with respect to the prevailing ESOS as of March 31, 2023, are as follows:

S. No. Particulars ESOP 2015 | ESOP 2016 ESOP
2021
(a) | Date of shareholders’ approval 27.11.2015 | 06.06.2016 | 06.01.2021
(b) | Total number of options approved under 3585 3300 236
the Scheme
| (c) | Options granted during the year - e | =]
(d) | Options vested during the year 290 778 -
(e) | Options exercised during the year 290 778 -
(f) | The total number of shares arising as a 290 778 -
result of the exercise of option during
the year
(g) | Options lapsed/Cancelled during the - - -
year
(h) | Exercise price (as on the date of grant T 10 Per Z 10 per -
: of options) Option Option
(i) | Variation of terms of options during the Nil Nil Nil
year ] o S
(i) | Money realized by exercise of options 2900 7780 -
during the year
(k) | Total number of options in force at the - 534 -
end of the year
() | Employee-wise details of options granted to
(i) | Key managerial personnel during the year o Nil
(i) | Any other employee who receives a grant of options in any one year Nil
of option amounting to five per cent or more of options granted during
that year (for FY23):
(iii) | Identified employees who were granted an option, during any one Nil
year, equal to or exceeding one per cent of the issued capital
(excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) of the company at
the time of grant.

The following changes took place in the employees’ stock option plans of the Company.

1. The Board at its meeting held on January 29, 2021, approved the modification of
ESOP 2015 and ESOP 2016 to provide the right to cancel the Options granted to the
Option-holders and paying the cash to the holders.

2. The Board at its meeting held on May 03, 2021, has cancelled 4,273 employees
stock options issued to employees and in lieu of the same; the holding company
issued 3,914 options to eligible employees.
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For further details please refer to 33 of the Financial Statements which form an integral part
of the Annual Report.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Confirm Ticket Opline Solutions Private Limited

Kotha Dinesh Kumar Sripad Vaidya
(Director & CEOQ) (Director & CO0)
DIN: 07092682 DIN: 07092692
Date: July 13, 2023 Date: July 13, 2023
Place: Bangalore Place: Bangalore
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Annexure — 2

FORM NO. AOC -2
Particulars of contracts or arrangements made with related parties
[Pursuant to Clause (h) of Sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, and
Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 - AOC-2]

This Form pertains to the disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by
the Company with related parties referred to in Sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's length transactions under the third proviso
thereto.

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of the relationship; All the contracts or
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions; arrangements or
(c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions, transactions entered
(d)Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions during the year

including the value, if any; ended March 31,
(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements 2023, are on an

or transactions; arm's length basis
(f) date(s) of approval by the Board ; and in the ordinary
(g) Amount paid as advances, if any; course of business,

(h) The date on which the special resolution was passed in the in view of the same
general meeting as required under the first proviso to section the details required
188; herein are not

applicable.

Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis

The term material is not defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made
thereunder. However, it is defined under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as follows:

“A transaction with a related party shall be considered material if the transaction(s) to be
entered into individually or taken together with previous transactions during a financial year,
exceeds ten per cent of the annual consolidated turnover of the listed entity as per the last
audited financial statements of the listed entity.”

During the year under review, your Company had entered into any
arrangement/transaction/contract with its related parties which could be considered material
and required approval of the Board. Accordingly, the disclosure of the particulars of the
related party transactions in form AOC -2 as required under Section 134(3)(h) of the Act is
not applicable.

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of the The aggregate value of
relationship other related party
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions transactions during the year
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(c) Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transactions ended March 31, 2023, is
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or less than 10% of the

transactions including the value, if any revenue from operations for
the year ending March 31,
2023.
(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any Given the same, the details
(f) Amount paid as advances, if any required herein are not
applicable

For further details on related party transactions, please refer to the notes to the financial
statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Confirm Ticket Online Solutions Private Limited

(0. el

Kotha Dinesh Kumar Sripad Vaidya
(Director & CEO) (Director & COO)
DIN 07092682 DIN: 07092692
Date: July 13, 2023 Date: July 13, 2023
Place: Bangalore Place: Bangalore
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Annexure-3

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities for the Financial Year
2022-23

. Brief Outline on the CSR Policy of the Company

Confirmtkt has framed a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy which
encompasses its philosophy and guides its sustained efforts for undertaking and
supporting socially useful programs for the welfare & sustainable development of society.
The Company's CSR strategy incorporates an inclusive approach into the design of every
program. Company as a CSR initiative donated 88 wheelchairs to South Central Railway
at Secunderabad railway station under the guidelines issued by the Ministry of Railways
for the execution of identified works through corporate social responsibility of corporate
and PSUs.

. Composition of CSR Committee: Not applicable

. Provide the web link where the Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and
CSR projects approved by the Board are disclosed on the website of the company.

Web link of CSR Policy: https://www.confirmtkt.com/csr-policy. html|

Web link for identified projects: https://www confirmtkt.com/csr-policy html

. Provide the details of the Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in
pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report): Not Applicable

. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of
the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and the
amount required for set off for the financial year, if any: Nil

. Average net profit of the company as per Section 135(5): ¥ 7,65,30,463/-

. (a) Two per cent of the average net profit of the company as per Section 135(5):
% 15,30,609.26/-

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the
previous financial years: Nil
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b- 7¢): ¥ 1530,609.26/-

. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount Amount Unspent (in ¥)
Spent for the The total amount The amount transferred to any fund
Financial Year transferred to the specified under Schedule VIl as per the
(in¥) unspent CSR account second proviso to section 135(5)
as per section135(6) |
Amount Date of Name of the Amount Date of
- Transfer Fund Transfer
| ¥15,24,600/- Not Applicable
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(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the Financial Year:

S.| Na | Item | Local | Locat | Proj | Amo | Amou | Amount | Mode | Mode of
N | me | from | area |ionof | ect | unt nt Transferr of Implement
o | of the | (Yes/| the | Dura | alloc | spent edto Imple ation —
the | listof | No) | Proje | tion | ated | inthe | unspent | menta | through
Proj | activi ct for |curren| CSR tion - | implement
ect | ties the tFY | account | Direct ing
in proje | (in®) | forthe (Yes/ agency
Sche ct project No)
dule (in ¥) as per
Vil to section
the 135(6)
Act (in ¥)
S|D Na | CSR
t |i me | regis
aj|s tratio
t | tr n no.
e |i
c
t
Nil

(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial

year:
S. | ltem Name of | Local | Location ofthe | Amoun | Mode of Mode of
No | from | the Project | area Project t spent | Implemen | Implementati
the list (Yes/ forthe | tation— | on — through
of No) project Direct implementin
activiti (in¥) | (Yes/No) g agency
es in
Sched
ule Vi
State | District Na | CSR
me | registr
ation
no.
1. | promo | Supply of No Telang | Hyder | ¥ Yes
ting wheelchair ana abad 15,24,
sanita | s at railway 600/-
tion stations
under the
guidelines
issued by
the Ministry
of Railway
circular no.
2015/EnH
| M/06/08

(d) Amount spent on Administrative Overheads: ¥ 6967/-

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil
(f) Total amount spent for the financial year (8b+8c+8d+8e): T 15,31,567/-
(g) Excess amount for Set off, if any: Nil
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9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:

SI.No Preceding | Amount Amount | Amount transferred to any | Amount
Financial | transferred | spentin | fund specified under remaining
Year to unspent | the Schedule VIl as per section | to be spent

CSR reporting | 135(6), if any in the
account financial succeeding
under year (in financial
| section %) year (in ¥)

135(6) (in
%)

Name | Amount | Date of

ofthe | (in3) transfer

Fund

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the
preceding financial year(s):

SIN | Proje | Nam | Financial | Proje | Total | Amount | Cumul | Status of the
o. ctlD [eof |yearin ct amoun | spent ative project —
! the | which the | durati |t onthe |amoun | completed/ong
Proje | project on allocat | project | tspent i oing
‘ ct was ed for | inthe atthe |
commen the reportin | end of
ced Project | g reporti
(in¥ |Financi | ng
al Year | financi
(in %) al year
(in%) |

Nil

10. In case of the creation or acquisition of a capital asset, furnish the details relating
to the asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-
wise details)

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s): Not Applicable

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset: Not Applicable

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital
asset is registered, their address etc.:. Not Applicable

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete
address and location of the capital asset): Not Applicable

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average
net profit as per section 135(5): Not Applicable

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Confirm Ticket Online Solutions Private Limited

_%,

Kotha Dinesh Kumar Sripad Vaidya
(Director & CEO) (Director & CQO)
DIN: 07092682 DIN: 07092692
Date: July 13, 2023 Date: July 13, 2023
Place: Bangalore Place: Bangalore
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Annexure -4
Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Outgo

Particulars, as prescribed by Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule
8(3) of the Companies (Account) Rules, 2014, in respect of conservation of energy,
technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo, to the extent applicable to
the Company, are given below:

a)

(i)

(ii)

Conservation of Energy
Steps taken or impact on the conservation of energy

Though your Company does not have an energy-intensive operation, every endeavour
has been made to ensure the optimal usage of energy, avoid wastage and conserve
energy. We have transitioned a substantial part of the work to be performed by our
employees while working from home resulting in a substantial reduction in energy
consumption.

Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy

Confirm Ticket Online Solutions Private Limited being a technology company, and its
operations is not energy intensive, and the energy consumption and energy costs
constitute a very small portion of the total cost. The steps taken by the Company for
utilizing alternate sources of energy are not significant.

(iii) the capital investment on energy conservation equipment

b)

c)

We constantly evaluate new technologies and make appropriate investments to be
energy efficient for example using energy-efficient equipment and devices, replacing
CFL fittings with LEDs fittings to reduce power consumption, and timely preventive
maintenance of equipment. The air is conditioned with energy-efficient compressors for
central air conditioning and with split air conditioning for localized areas.

Research and Development

We are a technology-driven company and our technology platforms have been designed
to deliver a high level of reliability, security, scalability, integration and innovation. Our
technology team has adopted a continuous improvement, high-frequency testing
approach to our business, aimed at improving both traffic and conversion rates, while
maintaining reliability. We use our technology infrastructure to improve the user
experience and optimize the efficiency of our business operations.

We have developed our platforms in-house which has enabled us to better manage our
product and service offerings and improve operating efficiencies by integrating our
sales, delivery and user service functions. Your Company has incurred expenses of
approximately ¥ 32.55 million during the period under review towards technology and
related cost.

Foreign exchange earnings and outgo

The total foreign exchange used and earned by the Company during the year as
compared with the previous year is as follows:
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Particulars Financial Year ended (%)
~ 31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Foreign exchange earnings 36,71,735 55,17,086
_Foreign exchange expenditure 63,47,176 41,58,821

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Confirm Ticket Online Solutions Private Limited

r UL

Kotha Dinesh Kumar Sripad Vaidya
(Director & CEO) (Director & COQ)
DIN: 07092682 DIN: 07092692
Date: July 13, 2023 Date: July 13, 2023
Place: Bangalore Place: Bangalore
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Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Confirm Ticket Online Solutions Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial statements ol Conlirm Ticket Online Solutions Private Limited
(“the Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes
in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (*“the Act™) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its profit including other comprehensive
income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as
specilied under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
*Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial statements” section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the *Code of Ethics™ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit ol the financial statements under the provisions
ol the Act and the Rules thereunder. and we have [ulfilled our other cthical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sullicient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board ol Dircctors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Directors report. but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon,

Our opinion on the Financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thercon,

In connection with our audit of the Financial statements. our responsibility is to read the other information and. in
doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the linancial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 112 based on the work we have
performed. we conclude that there is a material misstatement ol this other information. we are required (o report
that lact, We have nothing to report in this regard.

SR Ballbom & Assouiates LLP & Lumited L vty Partparsig with @
R fce T 2, 1, Block "B, Jedd
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Responsibility of Management for the Financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect
to the preparation of these Financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position. financial
performance including other comprehensive income. cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
2015, as amended . This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities: selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design. implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating cffectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free [rom material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Financial statements. management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable. matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
ofaccounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or (o cease operations. or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for oversceing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial statements as a whole are [ree from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and arc considered material if, individually or in the aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial statements. whether due to lraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error. as fraud may invalve collusion. forgery.
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

*  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and. based
on the audit evidence obtained. whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company s ability to continue as a going concern. 1 we conclude that a material
uneertainty exists. we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
linancial statements or. i such disclosures are inadequate. to modify our opinion. Our conelusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up o the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢« Lvaluate the overall presentation. strueture and content of the Financial statements. including the disclosures.
and whether the Financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation,
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters. the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit lindings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence. and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related saleguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

12

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order. 2020 (“the Order™). issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure 1™ a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(N

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

[n our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2013, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these Financial statements
and the operating effectiveness of such controls. refer to our separate Report in *Annexure 27 to this
report.

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2023 has been paid / provided
by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V
to the Act:

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule |1 of

the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position:
ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses;
iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The management has represented that. to the best of its knowledge and belief. no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind ol funds) by the Company Lo or in any other person(s) or entity(ies). including
foreign entities (“Intermediaries™). with the understanding. whether recorded in wriling or
otherwise. that the Intermediary shall. whether. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons

or entities identiiied in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of the Company (=Ultimate
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Beneficiaries™ or provide any guaranice. security or the like on behall of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries:

b) The management has represented that, o the best of its knowledge and beliel, no funds have
been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including floreign entities
(Funding Parties™), with the understanding. whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall. whether, directly or indirectly. lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behall of the Funding Party (*Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behall of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come (o our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement,

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the Company

only w.e.f. April 1. 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.
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Aunnexure 1 referred to in paragraph [ of the section on “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements™ of our report of even date

Re: Confirm Ticket Online Solutions Private Limited (“the Company™)

i. (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

(b) Property. Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year
and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(c) There is no immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the
lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee). held by the Company and accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property. Plant and Equipment (including Right of use assets)
or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2023,

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder.

ii. (a) The Company’s business does not require maintenance of inventories and, accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in
aggregate [rom banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis of
security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

ifi. a. During the year the Company has not provided loans. advances in the nature of loans, stood guarantee
or provided security to companies. firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties.
Accordingly. the requirement (o report on clause 3(iii)a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

b.  During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided security and
granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships
or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

¢.  The Company has granted loan(s) and / or advance in the nature of loans during the vear to
companies. firms. Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties where the schedule of
repayment ol principal and payment ol'interest has been stipulated and the repayment or receipts are
regular,

d.  'The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies. {irms. Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(d)
ol the Order is not applicable to the Company.

e, There were no loans or advance in the nature ol loan granted to companies. firms. Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(e) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

I The Company has not granted any foans or advances in the nature of loans. either repayable on
demand or without specifving any terms or period of repayment to companies. firms. Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other partics. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)([)
ol the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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There are no loans. investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions ol sections
185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(iv) ol the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits [rom the public nor accepted any amounts which
are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the
rules made thereunder. to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not in the business of sale of any goods or provision ol such services as prescribed.
Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company

(a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund. employees™ state insurance. income-tax.
sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom. duty of excise, value added tax. cess and other statutory dues
have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though there has been a
delays in a few cases for Goods and service tax. According to the information and explanations given
to us and based on audit procedures performed by us. no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months f{rom the
date they became payable.

(b) There are no dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income
tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty, excise duty, value added tax. cess. goods and service tax
and other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books
ol account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.
Accordingly. the requirement Lo report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest thercon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or linancial institution or
government or any government authority.

(¢) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence. the requirement
to report on clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) On an overall examination ol the financial statements ol the Company. no funds raised on short-
term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements ol the Company. the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

(N The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries. joint ventures or associale companies. Hence. the requirement to report on ¢lause
(ix}I) ol the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised any money during the vear by way ol initial public otTer * further
3

public offer (including debt instruments) hence. the requirement to report on clause 3(x)a) of the
Order is not applicable o the Company.

(b)) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement ol shaves ully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the vear under audit and hence. the requirement
to report on clause 3(x3(b) ol the Order is not applicable o the Company.
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(a) No fraud/ material fraud by the Company or no fraud / material {raud on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has
been liled by us in Form ADT - 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(¢) As represented to us by the management. there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore.
the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not a nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therelore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(¢) The Company is not a nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies Act, 2013
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 are not applicable to
the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as
it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit
system under the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, Therefore, the requirement
to report under clause 3(xiv)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company does not have an internal audit system and is not required to have an internal audit
system under the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the requirement
to report under clause 3(xiv)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected
with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(a) The provisions of section 45-1A ol the Reserve Bank ol India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Tousing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable (o the
Company.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as delined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank ol India. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(xviy of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group. hence. the requirement 1o report
on clause 3(xvi}d) of the Order is not applicable o the Company

The Company has not incwrred cash losses in the current linancial vear, The Company has not
incurred cash losses in the immediately preceding financial vear.
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There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement
to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements, ageing and
expected dates ol realization of financial assets and payment of linancial liabilities. other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge ol the Board of Directors and management
plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come
to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the
audit report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet
as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however,
state that this is not an assurance as to the [uture viability ol the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(a) in respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to be
transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with
second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note
25(b) to the financial statements.

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred
lo a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act.
This matter has been disclosed in note 25(b) to the financial statements.

IFor S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLFP
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF CONFIRM TICKET ONLINE SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
LIMTED

Report on the Internal Finanecial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Com panies
Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Confirm Ticket Online
Solutions Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company lor the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Finanecial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components ol internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit ol Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI™). These responsibilities include the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the
safeguarding ol its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records. and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, as
specilied under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
issued by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference lo these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of internal
linancial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing
and evaluating the design and operating eflectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suflicient and appropriate to provide a basis [or our audit
opinion on the Companys internal financial controls with reference to these financial staiements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these financial statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of linancial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
:xternal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial
controls with reference to linancial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain 1o the
mainienance of records that. in reasonable detail. accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company: (2} provide reasonable assurance thal (ransactions are recorded as necessary 1o permit
preparation of linancial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures ol the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition. use. or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material elfect on the
lnancial staiements.




S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered untants

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal tinancial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with
reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions. or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

In our opinion. the Company has. in all material respects, adequate internal linancial controls with reference to
[inancial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating
clfectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over [inancial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the csseniml components ol internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For 8.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Reﬂlsllalwnbl\lmnbm 101049W/E300004

/"”--'--~
pelf Amit Virmani
Pariner /
Menibership Number: 504649
UDIN: 23504649BGZLEH2509
Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date; July 13,2023




Confirm Ticket Online Solations Private Limited
Ealance Sheet as at March 31, 2023
(Al amounis in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Birkicitaes M March31,2023  March 31,2022
Nen-current asseis
Property, plant and equipment 4 0.23 0.19
Financial assets
(1) Other financial assets 3 2.00 2.00

Non-Current tax asset (net) 7 894 585
Deferred tax assets (net) 14 372 3.74
Other non-current assets 6 0.51 3.54
Totel non-current assets i3.40 i5.32
Current gssets
Financial assets
(i)invesiments Ya) 136.30 -
(ii) Trade receivables 8 1836 7.95
(iit) Cash and cash equivalents 9 21943 54 80
(iv) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 10 - T4.00
(v) Gther financial assets 5 7.32 2252
Other current assels 11 296.46 186.20
Total current assets 677.87 345.47
Total assets 693.27 360,79
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 12 1.36 135
Other equity 13 403.31 177.82
Total equity 484.67 179.17
Liabilities
Neon- current liabilities
Provisions 18 8.64 6.40
Total non- current linbilities B8.64 6.40
Current liabilities
Contract linbilities 17 37.84 18.58
Financial lialilities
(1) Trade payables

- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; 15 1.55 0.82

- total oulsl:md.in;'-, dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 9719 5541

and small enterprises 15
(i) Other financial liabilities 16 39.62 92.61
Other current liabilities 19 4836 5.13
Provisions 18 340 2.67
Total current linbilities 27996 175.22
Total liabilities 288.60 181.62
Total equity and labilities 693,27 360,79
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

For 5.R. Batlibol & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Chartered Accountants Confirm Ticket Onfine Solutions Private Limited
ICAT firm registration npmbe;; 101049W/E300004 CiN - UT411HR2015PT(103912
e J . | Q‘Jd
Amit \-'irmtu/ & As,

Szi y p : —_ . Kotha Dinesh Kumar
Partner Director LS . Director
Meibership No.: 504649 DIN: 07092692 ' DIN: 07092682
Place: Gurugram Place: Bangalore | B © Place: Bangalore
Date: July 13, 2023 Date: July 13,2025~ Date: July 13, 2023

(e

Rajendra Manker
Company Secretary
ICSI M.No.:A40536
Place: Bangalore
Date: July 13, 2023



Confirm Ticket Online Solutions Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

I Revenue from operations
[T Other income
il Totalincome (I+ )

IV Expenses
Employee benefits expense
Depreciation and amortization expense
Finance cosis
Other expenses
Total expenses

V  Profit before tax (I§11-1V)

VI Tax expense:
Current tax
Deferred tax charpe/{credit)
Total tax expense

VIl Profit for the year (V-VI)

VIl Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss in

subseguent years

Re-measurement (loss) on defined benefit plans

Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit

and loss
Other comprehensive (loss) for the year, net of tax

IX Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (VII+VIID

X Earnings per equity share (Nominal value per share - INR 18)

Basic, compuied on the basis of profit attributable to equity
holders (Rs)

Diluted, computed on the basis of profit/ attributable to equity
holders (Rs)

Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

For 5.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Chartered Acconntants
ICAI Brm registration rmmBrr: 101049W/EI00004

O/ | ="
. \‘:\)LN\AJAW
pe*,—\mil\'ir

Panner
Membership No.: 504649

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 13, 2023

For the year ended For the year ended

N March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
20 1,770.92 1,282,05
21 5.92 3.72
1,780.84 1,285.77
2 95.10 74.91
23 0.1 0.11
24 0.05 0.74
25 1.388.71 1.016.68
1,483.99 1,002.44
296.85 193.33
14
75.40 55.40
0.10 (4.57)
75.50 50,83
221.35 142.50
26
(0.31) (0.78)
0.08 0.20
(0.23) (0.58)
221.12 141.92
27
1,636.05 1,053.23
1.621.20 1,035.85
2

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Confirm Ticket Online Solutions Private Limited
CIN - UT4110HR2015PTC103912

Sripad Vaidya ko Kotha Dinesh Kumar *

Director k Director
DIN: 07092692 / DIN: 07092682
Place: Bangalon-: : I Place: Bangalore

Date: July 13, 2023

b

Rajendra Manker
Company Secretary
ICSE M.MNo.:A40536
Place: Bangalore
Date: July 13, 2023

-Date; July 13, 2023



Confirm Ticket Onfine Solutions Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the vear ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
A Cash flow from operating activities
1 Profit before tax 296,85 19333
2 Adjustments to reconclie projit before tex to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortization 0.13 0.11
Loss on foreign exchange (net) 0.15 0.13
Adjustment due to Property, Plant and Equipment scrapping - Non Cash 0.04 -
Provison written back 0.03 04
Impairment allowance of trade receivables 0.03 0.05
Bank Interest 0.05 -
Interest cost on borrowings - 0.74
Employee stock opiion scheme 4.38 6.30
Profit / Loss on sale of Mutual Fund investments (net) {5.76) -
Interest income on income tax refund - (0.04)
Interest income from:
- On deposits with bank and others (2.82) (1.72)
(3.77) 5.97
3 Operating profit / (loss) before working capital changes (142) 293.08 199.30
4 Woerking capital adjustments:
(Increase) / decrease in other non current assets 3.03 -
({Increase) / decrease in trade receivables (20.86) (5.29)
(Increase) / decrease in other financial asseis 15.20 (16.85)
(Increase) / decrease in Other current assets (107.33) (128.08)
(Increase) / decrease in tax assets (12.07) .
Increase / (decrease) in other financial liabilities (2.99) 3141
Inerease / (decrease) in trade payabes 42,52 24.78
Increase / (decrease) in Contract liabilities 19.26 0.46
Increase / (decrease) in other current liabilities 4323 (3.10)
Increase / (decrease) in provisions 4.98 5.00
Net changes in working capital {(15.03) (91.58)
5 Cash flow from operating activities (3+4) 278.05 107,72
6 Net Direct taxes (paid) / tax refunds (66.50) (59.01)
7 Net cash flow from/ (used in) operating activities (5-6) 211.58 48.71
B Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchase of Mutual funds (2,194.89) -
Sale of Mutual funds 2,065.66 -
Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment (0.20) (0.13)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 0.04 0.09
Payments for investment in term deposits with bank (having (461.19) (232.18)
maturity of more than three months)
Proceeds from redemption of term deposits with bank (having 53512 173.51
maturity of more than three months)
Gain on Sale of Mutual Fund Investments 5.76 -
Interest received 2.82 1.76
Met cash (used in) investing activities: (46.88) (56.95)
C Cash flow from financing activities:
Proceeds from issue of equity shares | preference shares including 0.01 0.00
securities premium
Finance costs paid (0.05) (0.74)
Met cash (used in) financing activities: (6.04) (0.74)

D Met increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash eguivalents (A+B+() 164.63 {8.98)




Confirm Ticket Online Solutions Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the vear ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts in INR millions, unless othenwise stated)

E Cash & cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 54.80 63.78
Cash & cash equivalents as at the end of the year (D+E) 219.43 54.80
Cash and cash equivalents comprises:

Cash on hand - -
Funds in transit 56.37 50.11
Others 100.00 -
Balances with banks:
- Current account 63.06 4.69
- Deposit account (with original maturity of three months or = =
less)

Cash and cash equivalents {refer note 10) 21943 54.80
Less: Bank overdraft (Secured) - =
Total cash and cash eguivalents 219.4‘_2 54.80

Summary of significant accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Assccigtes LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Confirm Ticket Online Solutions Private Limited
ICAI firm rtgistra!iaa’ number: 101049W/E300004 CIN - U74110HR2015PTC103912

01 Niguwars

Amit \*irm“ﬂ/ A

Sripad Vaidya Kotha Dinesh Kumar
Pattner ) Director Director
Membership No.: 504649 W DIN: 07092692 DIN: 07092682
Place: Gurugram Place: Bangalore Place: Bangalore
Date: July 13, 2023 Date: July 13, 2023 Date: July 13, 2023

-

Rajendra Manker
Company Secretary
ICS] M.Mo.:A40536
Place: Bangalore
Date: July 13, 2023



Confirm Ticket Online Selutions Private Limited
Statement of Changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts in INR millions, unless otherwise stated)

a, Equity share capital

Particulars

As at April 01, 2021

Changes in equity share capital during the year
As at Mareh 31,2012

Changes in equity share capital during the year
As at March 31,2023

b, Other equity

Balanee 25 at Aprif 03, 2021

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive loss for the vear

Empl P i p for the year (Refer note 33)
Deemed Contribution by parent company (Refer note 13)
Total

Balance s st March 31, 2022

Praofit for the year

(her comprehensive loss for the year

Employee compensation expense for the vear (Refer note 33)
Deemed Centribution by parent company (Refer note 13)
Total

Balanee a5 at March 31, 2023

Summary of significant accounting policies
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statemnents
As per our report of even date

For 8.R. Batlibol & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountanis
ICAI firm registration Tm:btr‘ D1049W/ES00004

r\j&j\f\r&m

perfAmit Virmani

Place: Gurugram
Date: July 13, 2023

Amount
135
135
0,01
136
Reserves and b
Equity component of Ca'].n!a! e - . a— Taial other
ertible pref : £ i
st !h:x Lo by parent carnings premium Stock Option s
SONERNY.
- 0.67 9.46 14.12 535 29.60
- - 142.50 - - 142,50
= & (0.58) = o (0,58}
% F: - - 211 a1l
F 4.19 - 4.19
- 419 141.92 - 21 148.22
- 486 151.38 in.=}2 T.46 177.82
" = 22135 - - I35
= L (0.23) - - {0.23)
s - - - 1.07 .07
- 3.30 - 3.30
- 330 2202 - 1.87 22549
- B.16 37|'1.‘¥i 0 14,12 8.53 403,31
2
For and on behalf of the Board of Direciors of
Confirm Ticket Online Solutions Private Limited
CIN - UT4110HR2015FPTC103912
Kotha Diresh Kumar

Director
DIN: 07092682

DIN: 07092692

Place: Bangalore
Date: July 13, 2023

p‘“b/
Rajerddra Manker
Company Secretary
ICSI M No. A40536
Place; Bangalore
Date: July 13, 2023

Place: Bangalore
Date: July 13, 2023



Cenfirm Ticket Online Solutions Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts are in thousands of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

1. Corporate Information

Confirm Ticket Online Solutions Private Limited (hereinafter referred as “the Company™) was incorporated on 17
March 2015 as a private limited company in Hyderabad, India. The Company is engaged in the business of running
an ontine platform named www.confirmtkt.com and confirm ticket mobile applications for providing information
and booking services for the travel industry across airlines, trains, and buses in real-time. The registered office of
the Company is located Znd Floor, Veritas Building, Secior-53, Golf Course Road, Gurugram, Haryana, India-
122002 and Corporate Office: 2nd Fioor IndiQube Hexa, Site No.191, BBMP Khata No.886/191, 6th Sector, HSR
Layout, Bangalore, Karnataka, India - 560102

Summary of significant accounting policies

1.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared to comply in all material respecis with the Indian
Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) amendment Rules 2016 (as amended from time io time), presentation
requirements of Division Il of Schedule 11l to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule III), as
applicable to the SFS and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statemnents have been prepared on 2 historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities

which have been measured at fair value or revalued amount:

e Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial
instruments), and

These financial statements are authorized for issue by the Board of directors on 13" July 2023.

The accounting policies, as set out in the following paragraphs of this note, have been consistently applied, by the
Company, to all the periods presented in the said financial statements.

The preparation of the said financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and
judgements. It also requires the management to exercise judgement in the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies. The areas where estimates are significant to the financial statements, or areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, are disclosed in Note 3.

All the amounts included in the financial statements are reported in Millions of Indian Rupees and are rounded to
the nearest Million, except per share data and unless stated otherwise.

2.2 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price at the measurement date at which an asset can be sold or paid to transfer a liability, in an
orderly transaction between market participants. The Company’s accounting policies require, measurement of
certain financial/ non-financial assets and liabilities at fair values (either on a recurring or non-recurring basis).
Also, the fair values of financial instruments measured at amortised cost are required to be disclosed in the said
financial statements.

The Company is required to classify the fair valuation method of the financial/ non-financial assets and liabilities,
cither measured or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements, using a three-level fair value hierarchy {which
reflects the significance of inputs used in the measurement). Accordingly, the Company uses valuation techniques
that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inpuis and minimising the use of unchservable inputs.

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described below:

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices for identical asseis or liabilities in active markets
Level 2: Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are directly or indirectly observable




Confirm Ticket Online Solutions Private Limited
Notes fo financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts are in thousands of Indian Rupees, uniess stated otherwise)

Level 3: Significant inputs to the fair value measurement are unobservable.

2.3 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

An asset is classified as current when it is expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal
operating cycle, held primarily for the purpose of trading, expected to be realised within twelve months after the
reporting period, or cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to setile a liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting period. All other assets are classified as non-current assets.

A lability is classified as current when it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, it is held primarily
for the purpose of trading, it is due to be setiled within twelve months after the reporting period. or there is no
unconditional right to defer the seitlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. All
other liabilities are classified as non-current liabilities.

2.4 Property, plant and equipment ("PPE')

An item is recognised as an asset, if and only if., it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. PPE are initially recognised at cost. The
initial cost of PPE comprises purchase price (including non-refundable duties and taxes but excluding any trade
discounts and rebates), borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly atiributable cost of bringing
the asset to its working condition for the intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as separate assets, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with expenditure will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced at intervals, the Company recognises such components separately and depreciates them based on
their specific useful lives. All other repairs and maintenance are charged o Statement of Profit and Loss at the
time of incurrence.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of PPE are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset
is derecognized.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on a wriiten down value method using the rates
arrived at based on the useful lives estimated by the management which are in line with the useful lives
prescribed in Schedule If of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has used the following useful lives to provide depreciation on its PPE.

Particulars Years
Computers Jinb
Office equipment 3
Furniture and fixtures 10

The useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of PPE are reviewed, and adjusted appropriately, at-least
as at each reporting date so as to ensure that the method and period of depreciation are consistent with the expecied
pattern of economic benefits from these assets. The effects of any change in the estimated useful lives, residual
values and / or depreciation method are accounted prospeciively, and accordingly the depreciation is calculated
over the PPE’s remaining revised useful life. The cost and the accumulated depreciation for PPE sold, scrapped,




Confirm Ticket Online Solutions Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts are in thousands of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

retired or otherwise disposed off are derecognised from the balance sheet and the resulting gains / (losses) are
included in the statement of profit and loss within other expenses / other income.

2.5 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation and amortization are reviewed for impairment, whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable or when annual impairment testing for
an asset is required. Such circumstances include, though are not limited to, significant or sustained decline in
revenues or earnings and material adverse changes in the economic environment.

An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrving amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit excesds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. To calculaie value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market rates and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that does not
generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs. Fair value less costs to sell is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants, less the costs of disposal.

2.6 Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Where the Company is the lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases. except for short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use
assets representing the right to use the underlying asseis.

A.  Right-of-use assets

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the daie the underlying
asset is available for use). Righi-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use asseis
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in section 2.6 Impairment
of non-financial assets.

B.  Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilitics measured at the present value of
Izase paymenis to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments {inciuding in subsiance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate,
and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably ceriain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease
payments thai do not depend on an index or a raie are recognized as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce
inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

in calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate ai the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the aceretion of interest and reduced for
the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amouni of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a




Confirm Ticket Online Solutions Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2023
{All amounts are in thousands of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease paymenis) or 2 change in the assessment of an
option to purchase the underlying asset.

C.  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the shori-term lease recognition exemption to iis shori-term leases of machinery and
equipment (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office
equipment that are considered to be low velue. Lease payments on shori-term leases and leases of low-value assets
are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Where the Company is the lessor

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a siraight-line basis over the
lease terms. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognized over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents
are recognized as revenue in the peried in which they are earned.

2.7 Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly atiributable to the acquisition. construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the
respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also
includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

2.8 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

(i) Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable o the
acquisition of financial assets (other than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) are added to the fair
value measured on initial recognition of financial asset. Purchase and sale of financial assets are accounted for at

settlement date.
Subsequent measurement

The Company determines the classification of its financial instruments at initial recognition. Financial assets are
classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (OCI). and fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortized cost
A financial instrument is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (8PPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
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acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included ia other income
in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the statement of profit
and loss. This category includes cash and bank balances, loans, unbilled revenue, trade and other receivables.

Financial assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (‘FVTOCI?)

A financial instrument is classified and measured at fair value through OCI if both of the following criteria are
met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the
financial assets, and

b) The asset’s contraciual cash flows represent solely paymenis of principal and interest.

Financial instruments included within the OCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at
fair value. Fair value movemenis are recognized in OCI. On derecognition of the assel, cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in OCI is reclassified from OCI to statement of profit and loss,

Financial assets at Fair Value through Profit and Less (‘FVTPL")

Any financial instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization at amortized cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income, is classified at fair value through profit and loss. Financial instruments
included in the fair value through profit and loss category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized
in the statement of profit and loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for
trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election
to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election
on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to
P&L, even on szle of investment.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in
the statement of profit & loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is primarily derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
the Company has transferred iis rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances using the expected credit loss (ECL) model for the financial assets which
are not fair valued through profit and loss. Lifetime ECL allowance is recognized for trade receivables with no
significant financing component. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount
equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from initial recognition in
which case, they are measured at lifetime ECL. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required
to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company follows simplified approach for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The
application of simplified approach does not require the company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition.

ii) Financial liabilities
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Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade
payables and other payables.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the labilities
are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

Amortized cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and
loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

After initial recognition, inlerest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is caiculated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance
costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to borrowings. For more information refer Note 15.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Oiffsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

2.9 Revenue from contract with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when conirol of the goods or services are transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

Revenue is recognised to the exient that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Company and
revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable.
taking into account coniractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes and duty.

The Company assesses its revenue arrangement against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as
principal or agent. The Company has concluded that it is acting as agent in case of sale of Airiine tickets, Train
tickets and Bus tickets as the supplier is primarily responsible for providing the underlying travel services and the
Company does not control the service provided by the supplier to the traveller.

Income from services
A. Ticketing
Convenience fees from reservation of rail tickets, airlines tickets and bus tickets are recognized on earned basis,

as the Company does not assume any performance obligation post the confirmation of the issuance of the ticket to
the customer.
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Commission income / Booking Referral Income earned from air ticketing and bus ticketing services is recognized
on a net basis as an agent on the date of completion of performance obligation by the Company which is date of
issuance of ticket in case of sale of airline/bus tickets.

The Company has measured the revenue in respect of its performance obligation of a contract at its standalone
selling price. The price that is regularly charged for an item when sold separately is the best evidence of its
standalone selling price.

B. API services

The Company has entered contracts with on-line platform companies, where, the Company provides back-end
support with regard to real-time updates on travel information. These contracts are short-term contracts and the
revenue is recognised, as and when, the services are provided by the Company as per the terms and conditions
stipulated in the agreements entered.

C. Advertisement Revenue

The revenue from the advertising services rendered is recognized when the services have been rendered, the price
is fixed or determinable and collectability is reasonably assured.

Display advertising revenue is recognized rateably over the advertising period or upon delivery of adveriising
impressions, depending on the terms of the advertising contract.

D. Income from other sources

Income from technical support fee is recognized on accrual basis as services are rendered as per the ters specified
in the service contracts.

Revenue is recognized net of allowances for cancellations, refunds during the period and taxes.

For all debt instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR). Other interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking inte account the amount outstanding
and the interest rate applicable.

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer, If the
Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or
before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

Trade Receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the
passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to accounting policies of financial
assels in section (2.9) Financial instruments.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays censideration before
the Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is
made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company
performs under the contract.

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is recognised for the obligation to refund some or all of the consideration received from the
cusiomer. The Company’s refund liabilities arise from customers’ right of return. The Company updates its
estimates of refund liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction price) at the end of each reporting
period.
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2.10 Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is the functional and presentational currency of the
Company.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the relevant functional currency at the rates prevailing
at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency at the closing exchange rate prevailing as at the reporting date with the resulting foreign
exchange differences, on subsequent restatement/ setilement, recognized in the statement of profit and loss within
other expenses/ other income.

2.11 Income taxes

The income tax expense comprises of current and deferred income tax. Income tax is recognised in the statement
of profit and loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in the other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the related income tax is also recognised accordingly.

a. Current tax
The current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax rates, laws and regulations, which have been enacted or
substantively enacted as at the reporting date. The payment made in excess / (shortfall) of the Company’s
income tax obligation for the period are recognised in the balance sheet as current income tax assets /
liabilities. Any interest, related to accrued liabilities for potential tax assessments are not included in Income
tax charge or (credit), but are rather recognised within finance costs.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are off-set against each other and the resuliant net amount is presented
in the balance sheet, if and only when, (a) the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set-off
the current income tax assets and liabilities, and (b) when it relates to income tax levied by the same taxation
authority and where there is an intention to settle the current income tax balances on net basis.

The Company periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

b. Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying valiues in the financial statements.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be uiilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will aliow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the

asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substaniively enacted at the reporting date.

2.12 Earnings per share
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Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the period atiributable to equity
shareholders by the weighied average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in
a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split {(consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity
shares ouistanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted eamings per share, the net profit or loss for the period atiributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects
of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.13 Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event, it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to setile the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are not discounted to their present value if the
effect of time value of money is not material and are determined based on the best estimate required to setile the
obligation at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimates.

Where the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example under an insurance contract,
the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

2.14 Contingent liabilities

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may,
but probably will not, require an ouiflow of resources. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
in respect of which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. The
Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in financial statements.

2,15 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and shori-term deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less (that are readily conveitible to known amounis of cash and cash equivalents and subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value) and funds in transit. However, for the purpose of the statement of cash flows,
in addition to above items, any bank overdrafts / cash credits that are integral part of the Company’s cash
management, are also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents.

2.16 Segment reporting policies

Identification of segments — Operating segments are reported in 2 manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). Only those business activities are identified as operating
segment for which the operating resuits are regularly reviewed by the CODM to make decisions about resource
allocation and performance measurement. For details Refer Note 31

2.17 Employee benefits (Retirement & Other Employee benefits)

Retirement benefit in the form of Provideni Fund is a defined coniribution scheme and the Company has no
obligation, other than the coniribution payable to the provideni fund. The Company recognizes coniribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. If the
coniribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet date exceeds the coniribution
already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already
paid.
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The Company operates defined benefit plan for its employees. viz., gratuity. The costs of providing benefits under
the plan are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end. Actuarial valuation is carried out for
using the projected unit credit method. In accordance with the local laws and regulations, all the employees in
India are entitled for the Gratuity plan. The said plan requires a lump-sum payment to eligible employees (meeting
the required vesting service condition) at retirement or termination of employment, based on a pre-defined formula.
The obligation towards the said benefits is recognised in the balance sheet, at the present value of the defined
benefit obligations less the fair value of plan assets (being the funded portion). The present value of the said
obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows, using interest rates of government
bonds. The interest income / (expense) are calculated by applying the above-mentioned discount rate to the plan
assets and defined benefit obligations liability. The net interest income / (expense) on the net defined benefit
liability is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. However, the related re-measurements of the net defined
benefit liability are recognised directly in the other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. The
said re-measurements comprise of actuarial gains and losses (arising from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions), the return on plan assets (excluding interest). Re-measurements are not re-classified to the
statement of profit and loss in any of the subsequent periods.

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee
benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay
as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term
employee benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately
taken to the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

The Company presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an
unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where Company has the
unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months, the same is
presented as non-current liability.

2.18 Share-based payments

Employees (including senior executives) of the company receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled
transactions).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an
appropriate valuation model. Further details are given in Note 33.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment (SBP) reserves in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The expense or credit in the statement of profit and loss for a period represents
the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in
employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company’s best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.




Confirm Ticket Online Solutions Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts are in thousands of Indian Rupees, unless stated otherwise)

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service
conditions have not been met. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated
as vested irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the grant date fair
value of the unmodified award, provided the original vesting terms of the award are met. An additional expense,
measured as at the date of modification, is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee. Where an award is cancelled by the
entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed immediately through
profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted
earnings per share.

3. Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The estimates used in the preparation of the said financial statements are continuously evaluated by the Company
and are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors (including expectations of future
events), that the Company believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. The said estimates are based
on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurred after that date but provide additional
evidence about conditions existing as at the reporting date. Although the Company regularly assesses these
estimates, actual results could differ materially from these estimates - even if the assumptions underlying such
estimates were reasonable when made, if these results differ from historical experience or other assumptions do
not turn out to be substantially accurate. The changes in estimates are recognized in the financial statements in the
period in which they become known.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

a. Allowance for uncollectible trade receivables and advances

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Estimated irrecoverable amounts are based on the ageing of the
receivable balances and historical experience. Additionally, a large number of minor receivables is grouped into
homogeneous groups and assessed for impairment collectively. Individual trade receivables are written off when
management deems them not to be collectible are provided in note 8 and 16.

b. Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.

c. Fair value of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the
present valuation technique. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but
where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include
considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. For details, refer to note 35.
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d. Defined benefit plans

The costs of postretirement benefit obligation under the Gratuity plan are determined using actuarial valuations.
An actuarial valuation invelves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension
increases. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation
is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. For details,
refer to note 28.

¢. Contingencies

The management judgement of contingencies is based on the internal assessments and opinion from the consultants
for possible outflow of resources, if any.

3.1 Standard/ Amendments Issued

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:

(i) Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements
This amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than
their significant accounting policies. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and
the impact of the amendment is insignificant in the standalone financial statements.

(i) Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
This amendment has introduced a definition of 'accounting estimates' and included
amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from
changes in accounting estimates. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual
periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and
there is no impact on its standalone financial statements.

(iii) Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes
This amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not
apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. The effective
date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2023. The
Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its standalone financial
statement.
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4 Property, plant and eguipment

Camputers Officeequipments  Furniture and Tatel
fixtures

Cost
As at April 01, 2021 0.22 0.21 .14 0.57
Additions/Adjustments - 013 - .13
Disposals - (0.09) (0.09)
As ot March 31, 2022 0.22 034 0.05 0.61
Additions/Adjustments - 0.20 - 0.20
Disposals (0.03) (0.01) - (0.04)
As at March 31,2023 0.19 0.53 0.05 0.77
Accumulated Deprecistion and impairment
As at April 01, 2021 0,14 0.14 096 0.34
Depreciation charge for the year 0.04 0.06 0.01 (R 5]
On disposals during the year - - {0.04) (0.04)
As at Mareh 31, 2022 0.18 020 0.03 0.42
Additions/Adjustments 0.01 012 0.00 013
Disposals = = = o
As at March 31, 2023 012 q_.gz 003 .54
et carrying value
As at March 31,2023 0.00 021 0.02 023
As at Mareh 31, 2022 0.04 0.14 0.02 019

(Tlix space has been itentionally left blantk)
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5. Other Financial Assets

A. Non-current

Unsecured - considered good
Security deposits

Total (A)

B. Current

Unsecured - considered good
Security deposits

Interest accrued on term deposits
Other Receivables
Total (B)

Total (A+B)

Total current
Total non- current

6. Other non-current asset

Prepaid expenses

7. Non Current tax asset (Net)

Non Current tax asset (Net)

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
2.00 2.00
2.00 2.00
0.96 1.44
0.02 0.18
6.34 20.90
7.32 22.52
9.32 24.52
7.32 22.52
2.00 2.00
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
0.51 3.54
0.51 3.54
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
8.94 5.85
8.94 5.85

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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8 Trade receivables

Asat As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Receivable from related parties 14.62 4.31
Trade receivables (net of allowance) 3.74 3.64
Total 18.36 7.95
Break-up for security details :
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Trade receivables
Considered good - unsecured 18.36 7.95
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 0.03 092
Trade ivables - credit imp ! - -
Total (A) 18.39 8.87
impairment allowance (allowance for bad and doubtful debts)
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit Risk (0.03) (0.92)
Trade Receivables - credit impaired -
Total (B) {0.03) (0.92)
Total Trade receivables ( C=A-B ) 18.36 795
Set out below is the movement in the allowance for expected credit loss of trade receivables
Amount
As at April 1, 2021 0.87
Provision for expected credit loss 0.54
Reversal of provision (0.49)
As at March 31, 2022 0.92
Provision for expected credit loss 0.03
Reversal of provision (0.92)
As at March 31, 2023 0.03
As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Ouitstanding for i from due date of ments
Unbilled Not doe Less than 6 6 months - 1 t2years | 23 yenrs More than 3 Total
dues __months year Years
- Undi: d Trade receivables — considered good 0.90 9.60 7.83 - - - - 18.33
- Undisputed Trade Receivabl which have significant - - - - 0.03 - 0.03
increase in credit risk
- Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - - - - - - -
- Di i Trade Receivabls idered good - = - - - - -
- Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant - - - - - - -
increase in credit nsk
- Dispuied Trade Receivables - credit imparred - - - - - - -
Total 0.9 9,60 7.83 - 0.03 s = 1
As at March 31, 2022
Particulars Outs| img for ing vears from due date of ments
Unbilled |~ Notdue | yeesthané | 6months-1 s More than 3
dues year 1-2 years years Yioars Total
- Undi d Trade ivables — idered good 0.11 4.84 3.00 0.m - - - 7.95
- Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have significant . 5 - 0.61 0.09 022 . 0.92
increase in credit risk
- Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired - = - - = - -
- Di d Trade Receivabl idered - - - - - - - -
- Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant - - - - - - - -
increase in credit risk
- Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired - - = - = - - -
Total 0.11 484 3.00 0.62 0.09 022 : 3.87
Notes:

(i) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0 to 30 days,

(ii) No trade or other receivable are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or
private companics respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member,
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9  Cash and cash equivalents

Details of cash and cash equivalents are as follows:

Funds in transit™
Balances with banks:

- On current accounts

- Deposits with original maturity of less than three months®*

Total

9(a) Investment in mutual funds, quoted (at fair value through profit and loss)
©3,468.89 (March 31, 2023: 63,468 89 ) umits of Axis Overnight Fund Growth Direct Plan

¢

il

46,27,648.51 (March 31, 2023; 46,27 648 51 ) units of Axis Ultra Short Term Fund Growth Direct Plar

... March 31, 2023

As at

As at
March 31, 2022

56.37

63.06
100.00

50.11

4.69

219.43

54.80

75.25
61.05

136.30

*Funds in transit represents the amount collected from customers through cards/ net banking/ UPI payment which is outstanding at year end and credited
to Company's bank account subsequent to year end.
**Cash at banks earns interest based on bank deposit rates. Shori-term deposils are made for varying period between 7 days and three months, depending
on the immediate cash requirements of the company, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Lien marked deposits with original maturity of less than three months*
Bank deposits with original maturity of more than three months but less than twelve months

Total

*Deposits are lien marked against Over drafi facility availed from Bank.

Other current assets

Unsecured-considered good

Prepaid expenses
Advance to suppliers

Balance with government authorities

Total

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)

As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
- 58.34
- 15.66
- 74.00
As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
25.83 68.28
254.50 108.51
16.13 09.42
296.46 186.21
— e e
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12 Authorised share capital
As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
() Equity Share Capital
155,000 (March 31,2022 : 155,000) Equity shares of INR Rs 10 each 1,55 1.55
1.55 1.55
Preference Share Capital As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
1500 (March 31,2022 : 1500) 0.01% Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares
of Rs, 100 each. 0.15 0.15
0.15 0.15
Terms / rights attached to equity shares
The Company has a single class of equity shares. Accordingly, all equity shares rank equally with regard to dividends and share in the Company's residual assets. The equity shares are entitled to
receive dividends as declared from time to time. The dividend proposed, if any, by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of sharcholders in the ing Annual General Meeting, cxcept in
case of interim dividend, The voting rights of an equity shareholder are in proportion to its share of the paid-up equity capital of the company. On winding up of the Company, the holders of equity
shares will be entitled to receive the residual assets of the Company, remaining afier distribution of all preferential amounts in proportion to the number of equity shares held.
Terms / rights attached to preference shares
The Company has a single class of cumulative compulsory convertible preference shares. Each lative Isory convertibl fi shares has a par value of INR 100 and is convertible at
the option of the preference shareholders into the equity shares on the basis of one equity share for every pmftfence shares held. My preference shares not converted will be mandatorily converted
into equity shares on the bais of ope equity share for the one preference share held on on 1| May 2038, The preference shares carry a dividend of 0.01% per annum, The preference shares are entitled
to received dividends as declared from time to time . The dividend rights are cumulative in nature, Preference shares are entitled to voting rights on an as if converted basis and preference shares
shall be treated pari passu with equity shares on voting matters . The prefer¢nce shares rank ahead of the equity shares in the event of liquidation.
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
(b) Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital
Equity shares of INR 10 each 135,297 1.35 135,297 1.35
Increase during the year 1,068 0.01 - s
136,365 1.36 135,297 1.35
(¢) Shares of the Company held by holding pany
As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
N'::Ib: - Amount Number of shares Amount
Le Travenues Technology Limited, holding company 122,831 1.23 113,218 1.13
(d)  Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company
Asat As at
March 31,2023 March 31,2022
Number of % holding in % holding in the
shares the class Mol class
Equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid-up held by:
Le Travenues Technology Limited, holding company 122,831 90.08% 113,218 B3.68%
Sripad Vaidya 6,764 4.96% 11,037 8.16%
Kotha Dinesh Kumar 6,766 4.96% 11,038 8.16%
(¢) Share issued for other than Cash consideration
Company had not issued shares other than Cash consideration during the current and preceding four years,
(f)  Shares reserved for issue under options

For details of shares reserved for issue under options under the Share Based Payment Plan of the company, refer note 33

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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i3

a)

b)

(c)

)

(a)

(b)

(e)

Other equity

Retained earnings Amount
As at April 01, 2021 0.46
Profit for the year 142.50
Other comprehensive {loss) for the year (0.58)
As at March 31, 2022 151.38
Profit for the year 221.35
Other comprehensive (loss) for the year (0.23)
As at March 31, 2023 372.50

Securities premium
As at April 01, 2021 14,12
Additions during the year on issue of share capital -
As at March 31, 2022 14.12
Additions during the year on issue of share capital -
As at March 31, 2023 14,12

Employee Stock Option
As at April 01, 2021 5.35

Expense recognized for the year 2.11

As at March 31, 2022 7.46

Expense recognized for the year 1.07
As at March 31, 2023 8.53

Capital contribution by parent company
As at April 01, 2021 0.67

Deemed Contribution by parent company 4,19

As at March 31, 2022 4.86

Deemed Contribution by parent company 3.30

As at March 31, 2023 8.16

Nature and purpose of reserves
Securities premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited

purposes in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

Employee Stock Option

The share options-based payment reserve is used to recognise the grant date fair value of options issued to employees
under Employee stock option plan.

Deemed Capital contribution by parent company
This is used to recognise the charge on account of Employee Stock Option plan of the Parent company.

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank}
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i4 Income tax

The major components of income tax expense/(income) as follows -

)T | tax exp f(imcome) in the of profit and loss comprises:

Tax Expense:

Current tax

Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years

Deferved tax income:

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences

Income tax expensef{income) reported in the statement of profit or loss

(il)  Other comprehensive income (OCI) section:
Deferred tax relating to items in OCl in the year:

Net gain on measurement of defined benefil plans

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit moitiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 is:

Frofit / (loss) before income taxes
Accounting profit before income tax

At India’s statutory income tax raie of 25.17%
MNon-deductible expenses for (2x purposes
Adjustment in respect of current tax of previous year

Deferred tax expense relating to the origination and reversal of temporary differences:

Others
Income tax expense

Income tax expense reporied in the statement of profit and loss

a) Deferred tax relates to the follewing :

Property, Plant & Equipment: Impact of difference between fax depreciation and
depreciation/ amortization charged for the financial reporting

Provision for doubtful debts

Provision for Gratuity

Provision for Leave

Provision for Special Bonus

Bonus disallowed earlier and allowed in the current year

Fair Value accounting of Mutual Fund

Deferred tax Assets/ Laibility(net)

Reconcilistion of deferrved tax asset (net):

Particulars

(pening balance

Tax income/{expense) during the year recopnised in profit or loss
Tax incomef{expense) during the year recognised in OCI
Closing balanece of deferred tax asset (net)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
75.40 51,97
& 343
0.10 (4.57)
75.50 50.83
For the year ended For the vear ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(0.08) (0.20)
(0.08) (0.20)
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
296.85 193.33
296.85 19333
747 48.66
1.28 1.82
- 0.22
(1.62) -
113 0.13
75.50 50.83
75.50 50.83
Stat t of profit and loss Balance Sheet
For the year ended For the year ended As at As at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
0.13 0.19 0.51 0.65
0.22 {0.01) 0.01 023
(0.64) (0.52) 243 171
(0.53) (0.57) 1.10 0.57
0.59 (0.45) 0.00 057
5 (3.213 " %
0.33 - (0.33) -
0.10 {4.57) 3.72 3.94
As at As at
March 31, 2023 Narch 31, 2022
374 (1.03)
(0.10) 457
0.08 0.20
3.72 %74

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a Tegally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred

tax liabilities relate to incoine taxes levied by the same tax authority.

(This space has been inientionally lefi blank)
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is Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises {refer notes below)
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises
- Payable to related parties
(refer note 309
- Payable to others
Total

Ag at
Bdarch 31, 2023

Asat
Mareh 31, 2022

1.55

0.14

97.06

0.82

0.26

53.15

98.75

56,23

Trade payables are noreinterest bearing and are normally settled on 0-60 day terms. In cases where the due date is neither agreed explicitly, above ageing is prepared from the transaction

date.

The amount due to micro, small and medium enterprises as defined in the "The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006" ("MSMED") has been determined to the

extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the C . The disel i

ing to the micro, small and medium enterprises are as under,

Particulars

Asat
March 31, 2023

Asat
March 31, 2022

1

(1)The principal amount and the i dus I

unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year
- Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises
- Interest due on above

(ii) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to/
the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

(iii) The of i due and payable for the year of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006
(iv) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year.

(v) The amount of firther interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006,

1.55

0.82

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars

Unbilled Due Mot Due Less than 1 1-2 Years

Year

2-3 Years

Outstanding for following years from due date of payment

More Than 3 Years

Total*

- MSME - 1.18 0.37 - -
- Others 1531 8141 048 - e
- Disputed Dues- MSME - - = = =
- Disputed Dues- Other - - - - -
- Unbilled dues -

1.55
97.20

Total 82.59 0.83 - -

98.75

As at March 31, 2022

Particutars

Outstanding for following years from due date of payment

Uanbilled Due Not Due Less than 1

Year

1-2 Years 2-3 Years

More Than 3 Years

Total*

- MSME - 0.82 0.00 - -
- Others 50.32 0.34 - -
- Disputed Dues- MSME - & = F &
- Disputed Dues- Other i = - & =

0.82
5541

Total 51.14 034 - -

56.23

¥ The above includes onr fi 1o Medi

Small and Micro enterprises.

Other financial liahilities

Asat
March 31, 2023

Asat
March 31, 2022

Current
Employee related payable

Advance from customers
Refunds payable to customers®

0329
0.12
8921

3.56

89.05

Total

89.62
==

92.61

Fered,

*Refund payable i pertaining to c fled tickets to be refiunded to end wser.

Contract liabilities

Asat
March 31, 2023

e

Asat
Mareh 31, 2022

Deferred revenue

37.84

18.58

Total

37.84

18.58
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18 Provisions

a)

19

Details of provisions are as follows:

A, Nen- current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (Refer note 28)

Total (A)

B, Current

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (Refer note 28)
Provision for compensated absences
Total (B)

Total (A+B)

Other liabilities:

Current
Statutory dues payable
Total

(This space has been intentionally left blank)

As at As at
Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
8.64 6.40
8.64 6.40
1.03 0.41
437 2.26
5.40 2.67
14.04 9.07
As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022
48.36 1
48.36 .1
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20 Revenue from operations

2) Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the company's revenue from contracts with customers:

Rendering of services

Ticketing revenue

Advertisement referral

Advertisement revenue

Technical and other suppeort fee

Total revenue from contracts with customers

India
Quiside India
Total revenue from contracts with customers

Timing of revenue recognition
Goods and Services transferred at a point in time
Total revenue from contracts with customers

b} Contract balances

Trade receivables and Contract assets
Contract liabilities

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
1,695.04 1,250.75
3330 11.05
24.17 17.69
1841 2.56
1,770.92 1,282.05
1,767.25 1,276.53
3.67 552
1,770.92 1,282.05
1,770.92 1,282.05
1,770.92 1,282.05
As at March 31,2023 As at March 31,2022
18.36 7.95
3784 18,58

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0 to 30 days. In March 31, 2023 INR 0.03 (March 31, 2022: INR 0.05) was recognised as

provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables.

Contract assets relates to revenue earned from ticketing, advertisement and other revenue services which are unbilled as the end of the year.
Contract liabilities consists of deferred revenue pertaining to revenue received in advance for free cancellation facility offered to customers.

¢)  Set out below is the amount of revenue recognised from:

¢} Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price

Gross revenue {revenue as per contracted price as per customer contracts)
Adjustments

Less: Discount offered to customers on ticketing Revenue

Revenue from contracts with customers

d} Performance obligations
Information about the Company's performance obligations are summarised below:

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) are as follows:

Within one year
More than one year

¢) Movement of contract liabilities during the year
QOpening Amount
Amount recognised during the year
Closing Amount

21 Other income

Interest on Financial assets measured at amortised cost:
- On deposits with bank

Gain on change in fair value of investments (net)

Gain on sale of investments (net)

Provison written back

Miscellaneous income

Total

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

1,770.95 1,282.12
(0.03) (0.07)
L,770.92 1,282.05
Asat March 31,2023 Asat March 31,2022
37.84 18.58
37.84 18.58
18.58 18.12
19.26 .46
37.84 18.58
=
For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
281 1.72

1.31 -

5.76 -
0.00 041
0.04 1.59
9,92 3.72
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22

23

24

Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds (Refer noie 28)
Gratuity expenses (Refer note 28)

Employee stock option scheme (Refer note 33)

Staft welfare

Total

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

85.55 65.60

0.50 0.40

2.55 2.06

4.38 6.30

2.12 0.55

95.10 74.91

The Code on Social Security, 2020 (*Code’) relating to employee benefits during employment and post employment benefiis received Presidential assent
in September 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the date on which the Code will come inio effect has not been
notified and the final rules/interpretation have not yet been issued. The Company will assess the impact of the Code when it comes into effect and will
record any relaied impact in the year the Code becomes effective. Based on a preliminary assessment, the entity believes the impact of the change will

not be significant,

Diepreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation on properiv, plant and equipment (Refer note 4)
Total

Finance costs

Interest on borrowings
Total

*#(Overdrafi interest charged for short term purpose & repaid within 7 days before year end.

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
0.13 0.11
0.13 0.11

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

0.05

0.74

0.05

0.74
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25

a)

b}

Other expenses
Faor the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Electricity charges 0.02 0.03
Rent (short term lease payments) 52 284
Rates and taxes 1.06 049
Insurance expenses 0.77 132
Advernsing and sales p 320,70 23963
Travelling and conveyance 0.75 035
Commurication costs 0.58 042
Legal and professional expenses (Refer note a) 487 385
Qutsourcing cost 2290 20.22
Impatrment allowance of trade recervables (Refer note 8) 0.03 0.05
License fees 6.80 5.06
Loss on foreign exchange (net) 015 013
Partner support cost 39425 35549
Printing & Stationery 0.04 0.0
Loss on Sale of Asset - 0,00
CSR Expenses (Refer Note (b) Below) 1.53 3
Dustribution Cost 97.63 28.32
Technology and related cost 3255 15.45
Lo ds / 11 costs 440.11 30755
Payment gateway charges 58.02 3446
Dhrectors Sitting Fees 050 0.30
Miscellaneous expenses 0.24 071
Total 1,388.71 1,016.68
Details of payment made to auditors are as follows:
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2023 March 31,2022

As suditor:

Audit fee 1.05 0.50

Others 010 010
Total 11§ 1.00,

Corporate Social Responsibitity ("CSR")

During the year ended March 31, 2023 company has profits exceeding threshold under section 198 and below are the details for CSR

Expense for FY ended March 31, 2023

" For the year ended
Fartieulars March 31,2023
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 1.53
b) Amount approved by the Board to be spent during the year 153

¢) Amount spent during the year

1) Construction/acquisition of any asset =
i} On purposes other than (1) above 1.53
d) Dretails related to spent / unspent obligations

i) Contribution to Public Trust -
) Contribution to Charitable Trust -

For the year ended
March 31, 2022%

i) Amount spent by company itself 1.53 -
) Unspent amount i relation to
- Ongoing project = R
- Other than ongoing project = =
In case of 8. 135(6) (Ongoing Project) Opening Balance Amount required to  Amount speatduring  Closing
be spent during the the period balance
period
For the year ended March 31, 2023 - - - =
For the year ended March 31, 2022* - = - -
In case of 5. 135(5) (Other than Opening Balance Amount required to  Amount spent during  Closing
ongoing Project) be spent during the the period balance
period
For the year ended March 31, 2023 - - - -

For the year ended March 31, 2022* & e

*The Company has not eamed average net profit in three i dintely ¢ ding fi | years, th
the Act which was required to be spent on CSR activities in each of the respective financial years

fore, there was no amount 85 per section 135 of
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27

Components of other comprehensive income (OCI)

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined benefit plans (0.31) (0.78)
Income tax effect 0.08 0.20
Comprehensive loss for the year {0.23) (0.58)

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year/year atiributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares
ouistanding during the year/year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders (afier adjusting for interest on the convertible preference shares, if
any) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year/year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be
issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

The following reflects the profit and share capital data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Weighted average number of Equity shares for Basic For the year ended For the year ended
earning per share (BEPS)/ Diluted earning per share March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
(DEPS)

Number of equity shares at the beginning of the year 135,297 135,297
Weighted average number of equify shares outstanding at the end of the year 135,297 135,297

Effect of Dilution :

Share options 1,239 2.270
Weighted average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution outstanding at the 136,536 137,567
end of the year

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Profit atiributable to equity holders of the Company for basic eamings 221.35 142.50
Basic earnings per share 1,636.05 1,053.23
Diluted eamings per share 1,621.20 1,035.85

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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28

(2}

(B)

Employment benefit plan

Defined contribution plans

The Company has a defined contribution plan. Contributions are determined as a specific percentage of employee salaries in respect of qualifying employees
towards provident fund & Employer State Insurance. The contributions are made to registered provident fund administered by the government. The obligation of the
Company is limited io the amcunt contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation. The expense recognised during the year

towards defined contribution plan is INR 0.50 (March 31,2022: INR 0.40).

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 Mareh 31, 2022
Contribution to provident fund 0.50 0.39
Contribution to Employee State Insurance - 0.01
Total 0.50 0.40

Defined benefit plan: Gratuity scheme

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 . Under the Act, employess who have completed five years of service are entitled to specific
benefit. The level of benefit provided depends on the member's length of service and salary retirement age. The employee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to 15 days
salary last drawn for each completed year of service with part thereof in excess of six months subject to maximum limit of INR 20 lakhs. The same is payable on
termination of service or retirement or death whichever is earlier.

The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based on an actuarial valuation as at the reporting date using the projected unit
credit method, which recognises each year of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up
the final obligation. The obligations are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rate used for determining the present
value of the obligation under defined benefit plans is based on the market yields on Government bonds as ai the date of actuarial valuation. Actuarial gains and
losses (net of tax) are recognised immediately in the Other Comprehensive Income (OC1).

This is an unfunded benefit plan for qualifying employees. The scheme provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in
employment or on termination of employment. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service,
The following tables summarise the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for

the respective plans;

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are, as follows:

For the year ended For the year ended
Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 6.81 3.96
Interest cost 0.49 025
Current service cost 2.06 1.81
Actuarial loss/(gain) on obligation
-financial assumptions (0.06) (0.67)
-demographic assumptions (03D 1.09
~experience adjustment 0.68 0.37
Defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 9.67 681
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Classification into current/non-current
Current liability 1.03 0.41
Non-current liability 8.64 6.40
Total liability 9.67 6.81
Net benefit expense (recognised in profit or loss}
For the yvear ended For the vear ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Current service cost 0.49 0.25
Interest cost on benefit obligation 2.06 1.81
Net benefit expense 2.55 2.06
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Expenses recognised in Statement of other comprehensive income

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Actuarial loss/(gain) on obligation
Change in financial assumptions (D.06) (0.67)
Change in demographic assumptions (0.31) 1.09
Experience variance 0.68 0.37
031 079

The principal actuarial assumptions used for estimating the Company's defined benefit obligations are set out below:

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Discount rate 7.20% 7.20%
Future salary increase 15.00% 15.00%
Average expected future working life (Years) 28.85 29.56
Retirement age (Years) 60.00 60.00
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability* IALM 2012-14 ult. IALM 2012-14 ult.
Withdrawal rate (%)
Upto 30 years 10.00% 10.00%
From 31 to 44 years 10.00% 10.00%
Above 44 years 10.00% 10.00%
*Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ultimate represents published mortality table used for mortality assumption.
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions is shown below:

For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Discount rate
Impact due to increase of 1% (0.56) (0.58)
Impact due to decrease of 1% 0.63 0.67
Future salary increases
Impact due to increase of 1% 030 0.29
Impact due to decrease of 1% (0.30) (0.29)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on the defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable
changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting year/year. These analysis are based on a change in a significant assumption, keeping all other
assumplions constant and may not be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would occur in

isolation of one another.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Year | 1.07 0.42
Year 2 1.19 0.46
Year 3 1.20 0.56
Year 4 1.19 0.60
Year 5 1.14 0.65
Year 6 onwards 11.19 13.17
16.98 15.86

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting year is 10 years (March 31, 2022: 15 years).
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Leases
As a lessee

The Company has lease contracts for office premises, parking spaces and other operating assets having term of 11 months for which
The company applies the “short-term lease” recognition exemptions for the lease.

The Following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Expense relating to Short ~term leases (included in other expenses) 5.21 2.84
5.21 2.84

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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30
)

(b)

Related party transactions
List of related parties and related party relationships

Holding Company
i.e Travenues Technelogy Limited (w.e f February 17, 2027)

Fellow subsidiary
Travenues innovations Privaie Limited {w.e.l February 17. 2021)
Ixigo Europe, S.L (w.e.fJuly 28, 2021)

Key managerial personnel (KMP)
Sripad Vaidya - Director

Kotha Dinesh Kumar - Director
Rajendra Manker- Company Seccretary

Individuals having significant influence
Sripad Vaidya
Kotha Dinesh Kumar

Transactions with related parties carried out in the ordinary course of business

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Advertisement referral
Le Travenues Technology Limiied 4225 12,78
Advertisment revenue
Le Travenues Technology Limited 14.41 6.74
Techaical Support Fees
Le Travenues Technology Limited 298 0.86
Advertisement expenses
Le Travenues Technology Limited 1.54 0.99

Deemed Contribution by parent company
Le Travenues Technology Limited 3.30 419

(e ) Details of outstanding balances of related parties

()

31

Particulars As on March 31, 2023  As on March 31, 2022
Payable 10 Le Travenues Technology Limited 0.14 026
Receivable rom Le Travenues Technology Limited 14.74 446
Capital contribution by parcni company 816 4.19

Compensation of key management personnel of the Company
For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Short-term employce bencefits
Sripad Vaidya - Director 7.70 7.20
Kotha Dinesh Kumar - Director 7.70 720
Rajendra Manker- Company Secretary 1.48 0.54
Others - -
Total compensation paid to key management personnel” 155;5_3 14.94

The amounts disclosed in the table are the amounts recognised as an expense during the reporting year related to key management personnel.

The remuneration 1o the key management personnel does not include the provision made for gratuily & compensated absences. as they are determined
on an acturial basis for the Company as a whele.

Segment Information

The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer (CEO & COO) reviews internal management reports for The Company. Accordingly, the
Chief Executive Officer and Chiel Operating Officer (CEQ & COO) is considered to be the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). The CODM
asseses performance and allocates resources at entity level. Accordingly, the Company's's business activily is a single segment operation.

Geographical information

The Company operates in India and therefore caters to the needs of the domestic market, Therefore, there is only one geographical segment and hence,
eeographical segment information 1s not required to be disclosed
The Company provides services to customers in India. Further. there are no non-current assets located outside India.

Information about major customers

Considering the nature of business, custorers normally include individuals and business enterprises. Further. none of the corporate and other
customers account for more than 10% or more of the Company's revenues
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32 Capital Management

For the purpose of Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, convertible preference shares, securities premium and all
other equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the
shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the
financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The
Company includes within net debt, interest bearing borrowings, trade and other payables less cash and cash equivalents.

Asat As at

___March 31, 2023 March 31,2022
Borrowings = )
Trade payables 98.75 56.23
Other Financial liabilities 89.62 92.61
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (219.43) (54.80)
Less: Other bank balances - (74.00)
Net debt (31.06) 20.04
Equity share capital 1.36 1.35
Other equity 403.31 177.82
Total Capital 404.67 179.17
Capital and net debt 373.61 199.21
Gearing ratio* 0.00% 10.06%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenanis
attached to the interest-bearing borrowings that define capital structure requirements.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2023 and year ended March 31,
2022.

*Nil for March 31, 2023 since, net debt is negative.
(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)
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34 Fair value hierarchy "
All financial instruments for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowesi level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a2 whole.

Level |: This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2; This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured using inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for such items, directly or
indirectly

Lewvel 3: This level of hierarchy includes items ed using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions
in the same instruments nor based on available market daia.

The Company's financials asseis namely Loans, Trade receivables, Cash and cash equivalents, Other bank bal JOther financial assets and financial labilities namely borrowings
Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2023:
Fair value measurement using

S ; g Signiticant
Total Qn:‘;efk::c;se?e;ul:;we Slg:;ﬁc?:;h::g:bh unobservable inputs
{ pu (Level 3)
Fi ial assets ed at amortized cost
Other financial assets 732 - - 132
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Other financial liabilities 89.62 - - 89.62
There are no transfer between levels during the year ended March 31, 2023,
Fair value measurement hierarchy for asseis as at March 31, 2022:
Fair value measurcment using
= i & i Significant
Quoted prices in active Significant observable _
Total ‘ enobservable inputs
markets (Level 1) inputs (Level 2) ( 3
Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Other financial assets 22.52 - - 2252
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Gther financial liabilities 9261 - - 92.61

There are no transfer between levels during the year ended March 31, 2022.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, Borrowings , Trade payables, other financial liabilities approximates the fair values due to
their short term nature.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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35  Fair value measurements

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments, including those

with carrying amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

Carrying values Fair values
As at As at As at As at
March 31,2023 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Financial assets
Other financial assets 732 7.32 22.52
Total 7.32 7.32 22.52
Carrying values Fair values
As at Asat - As at As at

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities 89.62

Total 89.62

89.62 92.61

89.62 92.61

Management has assessed that trade receivables, cash and cash cquivalents, other bank balances, trade payables and borrowings
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

Discount rate used in determing fair value

The interest rate used to discount estimated future cash flows, where applicable, are based on the incremental borrowing rate of
borrower which in case of financial liabilites is average market cost of borrowings of the Company and in case of financial asset is the
average market rate of similar credit rated instrument. The Company maintains policies and procedures to value financial assets or

financial liabilities using the best and most relevant data available.

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current

transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The fair values of the Company’s advances are determined by using discount rate that refiects the incremental borrowing rate as at the

end of the reporting year.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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36

(a)

(ii)

(b)

(e}

(d)

Financinl risk 8 bjectives and polici

The Company’s pnn:lpnl financial labilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The man pury of these fi ial liahil ts to finance the

Company’s of The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that denve directly from its

operations

The Company is exposed to credit nsk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior 2 o the gement of these risks. The Company’s senior
2 advizes on fi ial risks and the appropriate fi ial risk gy fi k for the Company, The Company's senior g

Company’s financial risk activilies are g | by appropriate policies and proced and that financial nsks are identified i and d in
! with the Company's poli and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are

summarised below,

Credit risk

Credit risk 15 the risk that a counter party will nnl meet 115 nbhg,nnuns under a financial mstrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company 15

exposed to eredit risk from 1ts op g ties (p ly trade bles), including dey with banks and fi | foreign exc

tr and other fi | instruments

Trade receivables and contract assets

Trade receivables are fypically unsecured. Credit risk is managed by the Company through credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously monitoring
the credi hi of to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables as of the reporting date 1s as follows:

Partialirs Unbilled Not Due 01060 days 61109 days | 9110180 days "li“" than: || i)
at March 3 0.90 9.60 7.83 - - 0.0 18.36
As atMarch 31,2022 01l 484 296 - 003 0.94 8.89
The ageing of trade recervables does not include expected credit loss
Reconcilation of impairment allowance oa trade and other receivables and contract assets
Impairment allowance measured as per simplified approach
Amount
As at April 01, 2021 087
Prowision for expected credit loss 0.54
Reversal of provision (0.49)
As at March 31, 2022 092
Provision for expected credit loss 0.03
Reversal of provision (0.92)
As at March 31, 2023 0.03
Market risk
Market risk 15 the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument wall {1 t of ct in mas'ktl prices. Market nsk comprises
three types of risk: interest rate nisk, currency risk and other price nsk, such as equity price nsk and ¢ dity nsk. Fi affected by market nsk
include loans and advances, deposits and FVTOCI investments
Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk 18 the nsk that the fair value or future cash flows of a fi | will fl t of changes in market interest rates The
Company s exp to the nisk of changes in market interest rates relates to the Company’s unsecured loan

Exposure to interest rate risk: Nil exposure as there are no borrowing as on March 31, 2023 & March 31,2022
Interest rate sensitivity analysis for variable instruments: Nil exposure as there are no borrowing as on March 31, 2023 & March 31, 2022

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the nsk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and collateral obhigations without incurning unacceptable losses. The

Company’s objective is to, at all times mamtain optimum levels nl’hqmdltv to mect its cash and coll ! The Company closely its hquidity
position and deploys a robust cash 2 system. It mai | of fi ing incl loens from banks at an optimised cost
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's fi 1al linbilities based on | und d pay

As at March 31, 2023

Carrying amount On Demand Upto 1 year Maoce than | year Total
Other financial labilities 8962 - 8062 - 89,62
Trade payables _9875 0.84 9791 - 9875
Total 18837 04 18755 : 8837

As at March 31,2022

Carrying amount On Demand Upto 1 year More than | year Total
Other financial habilitics 9161 - 9261 - 92.61
Trade payables 5623 034 55.89 - 56.23
Total 14854 0.34 148.50 - 148.84
Foreign Currency Risk
The foreign y EXp of the on bles and payables s not matenial

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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38 At March 31, 2023, the Company had available NIL (March 31, 2022: INR 70.00) of undrawn borrowing facilities.
32  Previous year fignres have been regrouped in line with current year presentation.
40 Subsequent Events.
Subsequent to the year ended March 31, 2023, the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on April 24, 2023 have considered and approved the Scheme of Amalgamation of
Confimm Ticket Online Solutions Private Limited (“Transferor Company ™) with Le Travenues Technology Limited (“Transferes Company™).
Further, the Company has received approvals from the Equity share holders and Creditors. Post receiving these approvals the Company has filed the application with the Hon'ble NCLT for the
approval of the Scheme.
41 Other Statutory lnformation
{1)The Company do not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property.
(ii)The Company do not have any ions with companies struck off.
(iii)The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be regi 1 with ROC beyond the y year,
{iv)The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Cumrency during the financial year,
{¥)The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entitics (Intermediaries) with the under ding that the | diary shall:
{a)directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b)provide any guarantee, security or ihe like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(vi)The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {Funding Party) with the und ling {wheth ded in writing or otherwise) that
the Group shall:
{a)directly or indireetly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(bjprovide any puarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,
(vii)The Company do not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,
42 Absolute amounis less than INR 5000 are appearing in the fi ial as "0.00" due to presentation in millions.
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